NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB kR M ot

1.  GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
15 February 2001 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company withdrew the listing of its shares on The Growth
Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 10 February 2003,
and on the same date, by way of introduction, listed its entire
issued share capital on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

The Company’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-111, Cayman
Isalnds. The Company’s principal place of business is Suites
918-920, 9/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong during the year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are manufacturing
and trading of BlOenergy® products, healthcare food
products, multi-functional water generators and other
healthcare products in the People’s Republic of China,

excluding Hong Kong and Macau (the “PRC”).

The financial statements on pages 33 to 95 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS

From 1 July 2005, the Group has adopted the new or revised
standards and interpretations of HKFRS which are relevant
to its operations. This includes the following new, revised

and renamed standards:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 2 Inventories

HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors

HKAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

HKAS 12 Income Taxes
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS

(continued)

HKAS 14 Segment Reporting

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

HKAS 17 Leases

HKAS 18 Revenue

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

HKAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and
Disclosure of Government Assistance

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation

HKAS 33 Earnings per Share

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets

HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets

HKAS 38 Intangible Assets

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations

HK(SIC) Int-15  Operating Leases — Incentives
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All the standards have been applied retrospectively except
where specific transitional provisions require a different
treatment and accordingly the 2005 financial statements and
their presentation have been amended in accordance with
HKAS 8. Due to the change in accounting policies, the 2005
comparatives contained in these financial statements differ
from those published in the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 30 June 2005.

Significant effects on current, prior or future periods arising
from the first-time application of the standards listed above
in respect to presentation, recognition and measurement of
accounts are described in the following notes:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS

(continued)

2.1

2.2

2.3

Adoption of HKAS 1

The application of HKAS 1 led to an update of the
presentation of the financial statements. Minority
interests are now included as a separate line item
within equity. Profit and loss attributable to minority
interests and that attributable to equity holders of the
Company are now presented as an allocation of the
net result of the year. In addition, share of tax of jointly
controlled entities which was previously included
under taxation is now included in share of results of
jointly controlled entities.

Adoption of HKAS 17

In previous years, construction in progress was
included in property, plant and equipment and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Upon the adoption of HKAS 17, the land element
included in construction in progress is considered
separately for the purposes of lease classification,
unless the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and other construction cost
elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
treated as a finance lease. To the extent that the
allocation of the lease payments of land element can
be made reliably, the leasehold interests in land are
reclassified to prepaid land lease payments under
operating leases, which are carried at cost and
subsequently recognised in the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. This change
in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively.

Adoption of HKFRS 2

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 2 on 1 July 2005, the
Group did not recognise the financial effect of share
options until they were exercised. The principal
impact of HKFRS 2 on the Group is in relation to the
expensing of the fair value of share options granted to
directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries and other parties, determined at the date
of grant of the share options, over the vesting period
with a corresponding credit to equity, unless the
transaction is a cash settled share-based payment. The
adoption of this standard had no significant impact
on the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS

(continued)

2.4

2.5

2.6

Adoption of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39

In accordance with the transitional provisions of HKAS
39, it does not permit the recognition, derecognition
and measurement of financial assets and liabilities in
accordance with the standard on a retrospective basis.
The adoption of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 has mainly
resulted in a change in the accounting policy relating
to the classification of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

Adoption of HKFRS 5

In the current year, the Group has, for the first time,
applied HKFRS 5 which requires an entity to classify
a non-current asset (or disposal group) as held for sale
if its carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than continuing use.
The assets classified as held for sale should be
measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value, less costs to sell. The Group has applied the
relevant transitional provisions in HKFRS 5 and elected
to apply HKFRS 5 from 1 July 2005 onwards. In the
current year, the Group has reclassified the relevant
assets and liabilities of a disposal group to assets held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5.

Other standards adopted

The adoption of other new/revised HKFRS did not
result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting
policies. The specific transitional provisions contained
in some of these standards were considered. The
adoption of these other standards did not result in any
significant changes to the amounts or disclosures in
these financial statements and the 2005 financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS 2%

(continued)

2.7

R RE ST EEM GRS

AR @)

The significant effect on the adoption of HKAS 17 on 2.7
consolidated balance sheet is summarised below:

FMEEETRE I 7RHES
BEARRZEEREMED
T:

HKAS 17#
EBEHEL
17554
HK’000
FET
At 30 June 2006 R=ZFTREA=1+H
Increase/(decrease) in assets EEWM (RL)
Property, plant and equipment M- BRERRE (7,300)
Prepaid land lease payments AT EENRK
—included in assets classified as - SADEAUMEE
held for sale ZEE 7,300
At 30 June 2005 R-ETAESA=TH
Increase/(decrease) in assets EEEM GEY)
Property, plant and equipment % - BERERE (7,165)
Prepaid land lease payments AL wEENR 7,165
At 1 July 2004 R-_ETNELA—H
Increase/(decrease) in assets EEWEM (BY)
Property, plant and equipment M- BERZE (7,165)
Prepaid land lease payments AN i HENK 7,165
# adjustments which take effect retrospectively from 1 July 2005
# B-ZZRFtA-AEEHAE
2.8  New standards or interpretations that have been 2.8 EEMEERERZFENNZ

issued but are not yet effective:

The Group has not early adopted the following
standards or interpretations that have been issued but
are not yet effective. The directors of the Company
anticipate that the adoption of these standards and
interpretations will have no material impact on the

financial statements of the Group.

HKAS 1 Capital Disclosures'
(Amendment)

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits — Actuarial
(Amendment) Gains and Losses, Group Plans

and Disclosures?
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS

(continued)

2.8

New standards or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective: (continued)

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign
(Amendment) Exchange Rates — Net Investment

in a Foreign Operation?

HKAS 39 Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of
(Amendment)  Forecast Intragroup Transactions?

HKAS 39 The Fair Value Option?
(Amendment)

HKAS 39 & Financial Instruments: Recognition
HKFRS 4 and Measurement and Insurance
(Amendments)  Contracts — Financial Guarantee

Contracts?

HKFRS 1 & First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
HKFRS 6 Financial Reporting Standards and
(Amendments)  Exploration for and Evaluation of

Mineral Resources?
HKFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of
Mineral Resources?

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures'

HK(IFRIC) Determining whether an Arrangement
—Int 4 contains a Lease?

HK(IFRIC) Rights to Interests arising from
—Int5 Decommissioning, Restoration

and Environmental Rehabilitation
Funds?
HK(FRIC) Liabilities arising from Participating
—Int6 in a Specific Market — Waste
Electrical and Electronic
Equipment?
HK(IFRIC) Apply the Restatement Approach

—Int7 under HKAS29 Financial
Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies*

HK(IFRIC)
—Int 8

Scope of HKFRS 2°
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS

(continued)

2.8

New standards or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective: (continued)

HK(IFRIC) Reassessment of Embedded
—Int9 Derivatives®

HK(IFRIC) Interim Financial Reporting and
—Int 10 Impairment’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2007

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2006

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 December 2005

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 March 2006

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 May 2006

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 June 2006

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 November 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for the revaluation of
certain assets and liabilities. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 30 June each year. All material
intercompany transactions and balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

3.3

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements also include the Group’s share
of post-acquisition results and reserves of its jointly
controlled entity.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the operating results and net assets of
subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Company
has the power to control the financial and operating
policies. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Company
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Company. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Acquired subsidiaries are subject to application of the
purchase method. This involves the revaluation at fair
value of all identifiable assets and liabilities, including
contingent liabilities of the subsidiary, at the
acquisition date, regardless of whether or not they
were recorded in the financial statements of the
subsidiary prior to acquisition. On initial recognition,
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are included
in the consolidated balance sheet at their revalued
amounts, which are also used as the bases for
subsequent measurement in accordance with the
Group'’s accounting policies.

In the Company’s balance sheet, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less any impairment losses. The results
of the subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable at
the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.4

Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby
two or more parties undertake an economic activity
that is subject to joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control over an
economic activity, and exists only when the strategic
financial and operating decision relating to the activity
require the unanimous consent of the venturers.

Investment in jointly controlled entities is initially
recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for
using the equity method.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of jointly controlled entities is included in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in the
jointly controlled entities (including any other
unsecured receivables), the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the jointly controlled entities.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled
entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred.

The Company’s interests in jointly controlled entities
are stated at cost less any impairment losses. Results
of jointly controlled entities are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.5  Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(i)

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
of each asset over its estimated useful life, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives of the property, plant and equipment are
as follows:

Leasehold
improvements

5 years or over

the lease terms,
whichever is shorter
Machinery and

equipment 8 to 12 years
Furniture and office

equipment 3 to 8 years
Motor vehicles 8 years

Measurement bases

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at
acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost
of asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its
intended use. The gain or loss arising on the
disposal is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the
income statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the
income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

The assets’ residual value and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

Construction in progress represents a building
under construction, which is stated at cost less
any impairment losses and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises direct cost of construction
during the period of construction.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.6

Financial assets

Prior to 1 July 2005, the Group classified its equity
securities, other than subsidiaries as short term
investments. Short term investments are investments
in equity securities held for trading purpose and are
stated at their fair values on the basis of their quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date, on an
individual investment basis.

From 1 July 2005 onwards, the Group classifies its
financial assets other than hedging instruments into
the following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial
assets, held-to-maturity investments and loans and
receivables. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired and where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised on their trade date.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments expire
or are transferred and substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred. An
assessment for impairment is undertaken at least at
each balance sheet date whether or not there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets that are either held
for trading or are designated by the Group to
be carried at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

3.8

Financial assets (continued)

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial
assets included in this category are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in income statement. Financial
assets originally designated as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss may not
subsequently be re-classified.

(i) Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Receivables
are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Any changes in their value
are recognised in income statement.

Receivables are provided against when
objective evidence is received that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due to it
in accordance with the original terms of the
receivables. The amount of the write-down is
determined as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted
average method and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprise direct materials, where
applicable, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less any applicable selling expenses.

Intangible assets and research and development costs
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised
initially at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB kR M ot

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.8

3.9

3.10

Intangible assets and research and development costs
(continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. Intangible assets are tested for impairment as
described below in note 3.12. Amortisation
commences when the intangible assets are available
for use.

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed
in the income statement as they occur. Costs that are
directly attributable to the development phase are
recognised as intangible assets provided they meet
the following recognition requirements:

(i) demonstration of technical feasibility of the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

(i) the intangible asset will generate probable
economic benefits through internal use or sale;

(iii)  sufficient technical, financial and other
resources are available for completion; and

(iv)  theintangible asset can be reliably measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on
development along with an appropriate portion of
relevant overheads. The costs of internally generated
product developments are recognised as intangible
assets. They are subject to the same subsequent
measurement method as externally acquired
intangible assets.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments represent up-front
payments to acquire the land use rights/leasehold land.
They are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.10

Income tax (continued)

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the balance sheet date. They are
calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the periods to which they relate, based
on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to
current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of tax expense in the income statement.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried forward
as well as other unused tax credits, to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if
they relate to items that are charged or credited
directly to equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB kR M ot

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.11

3.12

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank
balances as well as short term bank deposits.

Impairment of assets

Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
interests in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities
are subject to impairment testing.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). As a result, some assets are tested individually
for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level.

Individual assets or cash-generating units that include
intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or those
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they are impaired. All other individual
assets or cash-generating units are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions less
costs to sell, and value in use based on an internal
discounted cash flow evaluation.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.

Assets classified as held for sale

Assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sales if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the
asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate
sale in its present condition. Assets (and disposal
groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of the assets’ (disposed group’s) previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the Retirement Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules
of the Retirement Scheme. The assets of the
Retirement Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the Retirement Scheme
except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when an employee leaves employment prior
to the contributions vesting fully, in accordance
with the rules of the Retirement Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the
government of the PRC, subsidiaries of the
Group operating in the PRC are required to
participate in an employee pension scheme
operated by the relevant local government
authorities in the PRC and to make
contributions for employees who are registered
as permanent residents in the PRC. Such
contributions are charged to the income
statement as they become payable.

Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees.

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are
indirectly determined by reference to the share
options awarded. The value is appraised at the
grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB kR M ot

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.14

Employee benefits (continued)

All share-based compensation is recognised as
an expense in income statement with a
corresponding credit to share option reserve.
If vesting periods or other vesting conditions
apply, the expense is recognised over the
vesting period, based on the best available
estimate of the number of share options
expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised, if there is any indication
that the number of share options expected to
vest differs from previous estimates. No
adjustment to expense recognised in prior
periods is made if fewer share options
ultimately are exercised than originally
estimated.

At the time when the share options are
exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are
forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual agreements of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
as an expense in finance costs in the income
statement.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently
stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the balance sheet date.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Vitop Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2006

3.

FTEE

3.14

FIBUREIE @)

EEEH (&)

FRB AR 23 2 B
WERAERBMAX - I
MEEERT AR IR R o
PR RNH BB RS
A BAXREEHARE
HIRHSRE 2 R ER
B 2 REBMAHEHER -
IR TERBRERE
ZBREEFTSEBR
# o B EATRRAERE
R E 2 BRERE T
BNz AT - HREY
EETEATIERT » fMRAE
TEZBREDRELME
& RUEHECRRZ
R T FHE -

BREEITER - ZAIC
RBRERETEIRZS
FHEZRDBER o i
BREBERKINEIMA
TMARETE - ZAERE
RIERBHER ZEHE
BERTHRA -

MBAR

MBEERAEERRZRNZ
ERBETHO SRR - FreHE
B AR RIS R PR
RUBZHET 22X -

ERANGRAFENRAEE Z
R 5 RATER - HRET IR
ARSI o PRS00 IR 5
BA) REEEERZEIE8
RERI B £ RER A AR
mRATER °

BRIFAER B GEA BRI AR
EFREHERED12EREBES
& BRERTERARBEE-

BZ RAEMEBNRIRANTIEZAF
EHER - HREABRARER
B ATTE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of
shares are deducted from share premium (net of any
related income tax benefits) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Income and expense recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(i) Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised
on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with the ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold;

(ii) Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the effective
interest rates applicable; and

(iii)  Dividend income is recognised when the
Group’s right as a shareholder to receive
payment is established.

Operating expenses are recognised in the income
statement upon utilisation of the services.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB kR M ot

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.18 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions. Government grants
relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
income statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate. Government grants relating to the
purchase of property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred
government grants and are recognised in the income
statement on a straight line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets.

3.19 Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party:

— controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; or

— has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group; or

— has joint control over the Group;

(ii) the party is an associate or a jointly controlled
entity;

(iii)  the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

(iv)  the party is a close member of the family or
any individual referred to in (i) or (iii);

(v) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (iii) or (iv); or

(vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group, or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Operating leases

3.21

As the lessee

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of leased assets remain with the lessor
are accounted for as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis. Affiliated costs, such
as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as
incurred.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (HK$), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

In the separate financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year-end
exchange rates are recognised in the income
statement.

In the consolidated financial statements, all separate
financial statements of subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency, have
been converted into Hong Kong dollars. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the closing rate at the balance sheet date. Income
and expenses have been converted into Hong Kong
dollars at the average rates over the reporting period.
Any differences arising from this procedure have been
dealt with in the translation reserve in equity.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity have been treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB kR M ot

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.22 Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits or other
distributable reserves, where appropriate, within the
equity section of the balance sheet, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved
by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised
as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal to the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

i) Depreciation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and
equipment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 3.5. The estimated useful lives reflect
the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the
use of the Group’s property, plant and equipment.

(i) Impairment of receivables

The Group’s management determines impairment of
receivables on a regular basis. This estimate is based
on the credit history of its customers and current
market conditions. The management of the Group
reassesses the impairment of receivables at the balance
sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(iii)  Allowance for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group
would evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and
compare the carrying value of inventories to their
respective net realisable values. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in determining such
allowance. If conditions which have impact on the
net realisable value of inventories deteriorate,
additional allowances may be required.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business
segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by
geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and
the products they sell. Each of the Group’s business segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers products which
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of the other business segments.

Summary details of the business segments are as follows:

— the BlOenergy® products segment consists of the
manufacturing and trading of bedding products,
underclothing and body protection accessories containing
the BIOenergy® compound;

— the healthcare food products segment consists of the
trading of healthcare food products, including polypeptide
products;

— the multi-functional water generators segment consists of
the manufacturing and trading of multi-functional water
generators; and

— the “others” segment consists of the trading of other
healthcare products and others.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues
and results are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the
segments on the location of the assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. SEBEHR @
@) Business segments (@) e R
The following tables present revenue, results and TRENAEEBREK DI 2K
certain assets, liabilities and expenditure information m EBRETEE BEBKH
for the Group’s business segments: XEHR
BlOenergy® Healthcare Multi-functional
products food products water generators Others Consolidated
RERRIER RRRE e £ &8
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
—TRAE “ITRE ZRENE CZT1E CRRRE CTERE CERAE CIINF 2R C5%1f
HK$000  HK$'000 ~ HK$/000 HKS'000 — HK$’000 HKS'000 ~ HK$’000 HKS$'000 ~ HK$/000 HKS'000
FEn TEr Tém FEr  TEm  TEr TEm TEn  TEm  FEn
(Restated)
(#E7))
Segment revenue: AR
Sales to external customers ~ ¥AEFH#E 27,201 44624 16,135 7763 51,638 90,670 © 5014 2294 99,988 145551
Segment resul PEET 560 15,122 (35 2,006 3080 16994 (3,038 369 571 34,591
Unallocated other income ~ EfRFERA 3,347 2954
Unallocated expenses AAERX (42,005 (33,755)
(Loss)/Profit from operating &£ 2 (§8)
activities Va:i (38,087 3,79
Finance costs g S (131) -
Share of loss of BiE LR
ajointly controlled entity ~ EREE (570) (758
(Loss)/Profit before taxation ~ REtAT (B718) /%) (38,788) 3,032
Taxation HE (987)  (766)
(Loss)/Profit for the year REE (F8) /87 (39,775) 2,266
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5.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Business segments (continued)

BlOenergy®
products
REZRIER
2005
Z2%0F
HK$000
TEn

Segment assets

Interests in a jointly
controlled entity

Unallocated assets
Total assets
Unallocated liabilities
Total liabilities

Other segment
information:

Depreciation

Unallocated amount of
depreciation

Amortisation of
intangible assets

Capital expenditure
Unallocated amounts of
capital expenditure

Provision for obsolete
and slow-moving
inventories

Unallocated provision
for impairment of
trade receivables and
deposits, prepayment
and other receivables

13,280

RAEER

4288

AfbpEEs:

ik
RABRESR

BRAEEY
1,303

EARX
RBEFHXER

314

RERFEFERR

(20)

ERRUERRTS
BSEREMER
REZADERR

B 5 4R R B et

5. SEREHE @
(@ EBRI @E
Healthcare Multi-functional
food products water generators Others Consolidated
REas SREKE £ &8

2005 2005 2005 2005
“2%1F ZZERE 5% 3 513
HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tér TR TEn TEn
(Restated)
(#E7))
5,605 7,789 1,103 27,837
- 570 - 570
100,397
128,804
35,420
35,420
- 87 5 92
4,584
4,676
598 - - 1,903
- 101 52 467
6,619
7,086
103 492 - 575
3,571

REEPER
—EERE




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(b)  Geographical segments

A geographical analysis of the Group’s revenue,
certain asset and expenditure information is not
presented as the Group’s revenue and assets in
geographical segments other than the PRC are less
than 10% of the aggregate amount of all segments.

6. REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns
and trade discounts where applicable. All significant intra-
group transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.

7.  OTHER INCOME

PEBEF @)
(b) b [E 43 &8

HAREEIRBLES I (TEK
M zREREELRERS
BETRIEZ10% » A E 2 52
E@ERhES T o WE  HETE
ERHEIERDHN -

W 2

Wi FENRAKE 2 EXE  BEH
BRERENREZITH WER) BZHEE
MBFEFE - IERERARZ—EXR
REERGEEREREHE -

HirA

Group

xEH
2006 2005
—BBRE —ZTHF
HK$7000 HK$’000
FEx FET
Interest income B WA 389 605
Dividend income R EW A = 26
Government grants B fE R U 1,552 -

Gain on disposal of HEREBREWE

short term investments - 793
Others Hth 1,406 1,530
3,347 2,954

Note: Government grants are related to certain incentive schemes
offered by the PRC Government for the achievement of
widely recognised brand in the PRC and certain research
and development projects undertaken by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M ¥R

(LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 8. &% (&58) 7

(Loss)/Profit from operating activities is arrived at after @ (F18) SRR NG G A) T
charging/(crediting): 217
Group
AEE
2006 2005
—BERE —EThF
HK$7000 HK$’000
FHETT FHET
Auditors’ remuneration B AN € 438 438
Cost of inventories sold EHFERA 54,640 74,740
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIfK (FERESHE
remuneration (note 14(a))) (B EE14(a)) )
Wages and salaries Iﬁ&%ﬁ% 17,344 15,994
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFTEIER 981 981
18,325 16,975
Depreciation i 5,358 4,676
Amortisation of intangible assets MBI EE 1,911 1,903
Exchange gain, net BE 5 W5 % 58 (51 (77)
Operating lease charges in respect of RiE+ i RIEF Z
land and buildings KERNBEE 3,455 3,652
Impairment loss on trade receivables & 5 EW IR 2 M EE5 18 2,254 3,571
Impairment loss on deposits, e EAREREAAE
prepayments and other receivables  URBRFX Z R BB 10,957 -
Impairment loss recognised ENGEHESEE
on the remeasurement of assets of ~ ERZHEEE
disposal group 1,323 -
Provision for obsolete and RERFHTFERB
slow-moving inventories 7,319 575
Loss on disposal of property, plant ~ HEYHE - BERREZEE
and equipment 153 16
Fair value loss on financial assets RATFEULENREBRIIRZ
at fair value through profit or BigEE BHEREZ
loss/short term investments NFERE 30 221
FINANCE COSTS 9. HMBXH
Group
AERE
2006 2005
—BERE —EThF
HK$7000 HK$’000
FHETT FHET
Interest on bank loans AROFRATBHEEZ
Wholly repayable within five years $RITERZFIE 131 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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10. TAXATION 10. #HIE

RSB F N &8I R BUEF
CE2ERF [ H)  BRUEFELHEBR
EHRE - Hibih T 2 BRBUEF 2 B
ENBEAEBREEER 2 A EEEER
ZBRABREANE  URBFARZBE
ZBREED - RBREHIMEE -

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group
had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year (2005: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the applicable rates of tax prevailing in
the jurisdiction in which the Group operates, based on
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof during the year.

Group

AERE
2006 2005
—BTRE —EZThEF
HK$7000 HK$000
FHETT FET

Current — PRC BIHER — R

Charge for the year REFZH 987 1,138
Overprovision in prior years DS EBRERE - (372)
987 766

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)/profit

REE ZBIREIR TSR < BRBAT (818)

before taxation per the income statement as follows: S ORFEERAT
Group
*£E
2006 2005
—BFR —TZRE
HK$'000 HK$ /000
FEIT FET

(Loss)/Profit before taxation BRELRT (B518) /8 F (38,788) 3,032

Tax at the applicable tax rate (note a) RERBEGFE 2 BE () (6,073) 623

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR B 2 BB L& 1,802 1,461

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BEARRBAZRBEE () (23)

Tax effect of temporary differences AFRALGHEZECHETE

not recognised ) 3,006 -

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ~ RERBHKEB 2B BEHE 1,385 1,692

Tax benefit from tax holiday (note b) SR HBEE (MzEh) (59) (2,549)

Tax effect of overprovision DEFEBRERBZHELE

in prior years - (372)

Others Hfty 929 (66)

Actual tax expense BRHIERX 987 766

Notes: 5]

a. The applicable rate is the weighted average of rates prevailing a. BARZERARAREMNE D AE
in the jurisdictions in which the Company and its subsidiaries EEBAEREE R 2B R 2N
operate. REF1(E -

b. In accordance with the applicable corporate income tax law b. REBEERANPECEMRSRLE &

of the PRC, the Company’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC, are entitled to an exemption from PRC corporate
income tax for the first two profitable calendar years of its
operation and a 50% relief on corporate income tax for the

following three years.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt ¥5 R R M sE
TAXATION (continued) 10. ®IE @)
At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses REER  AEEZARDAKREESER
of HK$39,004,000 (2005: HK$29,773,000) available for 39,004,000t (Z&EEHF :
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies 29,773,000/ T) - A Tﬁfﬁ?i%iﬁ
which incurred the losses. Deferred tax assets have not been ZATZARRERTEF o HRAREE
recognised in respect of these losses due to the ERFRAES ML RRZEEEE
unpredictability of future profit streams. RIELEBEEE ©
As at 30 June 2006, the Group and the Company did not REZZBERFAA=TH  ARERAE
have any significant unprovided deferred tax liabilities (2005: Ajﬁﬂﬁzﬁijﬁkﬁéﬁ EBIREE
Nil). (ZZZRHF  8|) -
(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 11. AXATELSHHAREL (B518)
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY i
Of the consolidated loss attributable to equity holder of the R #939,920,0008B T (ZEZHF &
Company of approximately HK$39,920,000 (2005: profit of 1,271,000/ 7T) 2R AEEFEA
HK$1,271,000), a loss of approximately HK$11,930,000 BALGREBERET - AQRRMBRE
(2005: loss of HK$5,819,000) has been dealt with in the WERIE 2 BB A11,930,000/8 T (=
financial statements of the Company. ZTERF [ F1E5,819,00087T) °
DIVIDENDS 12. B2
2006 2005
—EBERE —EERF
HK$’000 HK$000
FETT FBT
Proposed final dividend BRARH RS
(2005: HK0.72 cent per —ZZREF
ordinary share) BREBRO.728) - 4,910
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. AAS#EEFHANEESE (6B

TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on
loss attributable to equity holders for the year ended 30 June
2006 of approximately HK$39,920,000 (2005: profit of
HK$1,271,000) and the weighted average of 690,893,647
(2005: 680,897,278) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

For the year ended 30 June 2005, the calculation of diluted
earnings per share is based on profit attributable to equity
holders of approximately HK$1,271,000 and the weighted
average number of 683,412,782 ordinary shares outstanding
during the year, adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
shares. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 30 June 2005 is calculated based on the weighted
average of 680,897,278 ordinary shares in issue during the
year plus the weighted average of 2,515,504 ordinary shares
deemed to be issued at no consideration as if all the
Company’s share options had been exercised.

The diluted loss per share for the year ended 30 June 2006
was not presented as there were no potential dilutive ordinary
shares.

8 &B¥#

BREX (F8) BFNREEE=-Z
ERFAAZTHILEFEERSEEAE
{EE#E#39,920,0008 Tt (ZEZH
& ERT,271,00087T) RERB#IT
LB AT 1980690,893,647 8% (=
ZHF : 680,897,2780R) 5T E

BE-ZZRFEA=1THLEE &
BEERF DR EERSEE AEGEF
#1,271,0008 TR FABBITEER
IIREF98683,412,782 5T E (FA 2R
EBEEBENERMELAR) - 5HE
Eii_? EhFEANB=THLEEEZE
RESER T A2 S @R MmEE TS
DREBEFRAERITEERMEFLITH
680,897,2788% » MIBM AR D T 2 B IR
EEETEMERIESTFRERTZE
BRINEFRHE2,515,504RTE

MR EEL AMERETRER - Mt
E2IBE_SERFEAA=THLEF
EzSR#BEEHSE -
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. EERAZEREFEEZINZ
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

(@)  Directors’ emoluments @ EEMs
The directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the BHE LR B R BB A REREIE
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong 16115 EEMEe 2 HELT :
Companies Ordinance is as follows:
Group
AEH
2006 2005
—TER —EEEF
HK$7000 HK$’000
FET FET
Fees wE 325 352
Other emoluments: HibE <€ -
Salaries, allowances e RHREVAZ
and benefits in kind 3,408 4,046
Lump sum ex-gratia payment — R MEFFEEEL - 960
Pension scheme ERESFTEIMHER
contributions 37 38
3,445 5,044
The emoluments of each director, on a named basis, BEZZEERERZEFREN
for the year ended 30 June 2006 and 2005 are set out B=1tHILEE SNUESZH
below: SREABHMAOT ¢
Salaries,
allowances
and Lump sum Pension
Director henefits ex-gratia scheme
fees in kind payment  contributions Total
g
2R —Rit Bhe
e UG HEE HEL:EN &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tir i Tér ThEr FiEx
Hung Kai So & - 143 - - 143
Kam loi £ - 1,266 - 4 1,270
Ma Yufeng FR# - 599 - 12 611
Liu Jun £l - 680 = 12 692
Lee Kwok Ming (Note 1) Z B8 (Hf3E1) 50 - - - 50
Yuan Tsu | =A% 73 - = - 73
Yick Wing Fat, Simon K% (Wit2)

(Note 2) 117 - - - 117
Li Li Te ZER 61 - = - 61
Chan Yuk Tong (Note 3) ~ RE X (#5£3) - 720 - 9 729
Chan Chiu Hung, Alex  BR&I (Firzt4)

(Note 4) 24 - - - 24
Total 2006 “ERRERG 325 3,408 - 37 3,770
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cr R R E AU

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. BEERIEESHFESEZME
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (continued) (&)
Directors’ emoluments (continued) (@ EBNE @&
Salaries,
allowances Lump sum Pension
Director  and henefits ex-gratia scheme
fees in kind payment  contributions Total
fig
2R s BHhe
£ 30k Bhila B T EI#R &7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET Tir TER Tin TER
Hung Kai So it - 143 - - 143
Kam loi E3) - 1,097 - 4 1,101
Ma Yufeng FRE - 648 - 12 660
Sae-lao Rakchanok (Note 5) E¢ (HfzE5) - 345 960 4 1,309
Liu Jun e - 596 - 12 608
Lee Kwok Ming (Note 1) ZEEI8 (&t 1) - 1217 - 6 1223
Yuan Tsu | =t 9% - - - 96
Yick Wing Fat, Simon K% (Wit2)

(Note 2) 184 - - - 184
LiLiTe 2R 51 - - - 51
Huang Ming Da (Note 5)  E 83 (f&5) 21 - - - 21
Total 2005 “RRREAH 352 4,046 960 38 5,396
Notes: Hfi 3
1. Re-designated from executive director to non- 1. R-ZEZRF-AEHEH

executive director on 5 January 2005 and resigned
as non-executive director on 5 January 2006.

2. Resigned on 1 February 2006.

3. Appointed on 30 September 2005.
4. Appointed on 5 January 2006

5. Resigned on 18 October 2004.

Fees include HK$325,000 (2005: HK$352,000)
payable to the independent non-executive directors.
There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2005: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the years ended 30 June 2006 and 2005.

TESEERFIITES
WAZZEZEARFE—AHEAR
EFHITES -

2. R-ZBEZERE-_A—HE
e

3. R-ZEZHEFNA=+HE
E{F o

5. R-ZZ2NE+AT AR
£ -

7@%@%@7‘%@‘1#@"%?
23250008 T (ZEZ2HF ©
352,000/ 5T) £y WEAE
MEMENFBILIBTEEZ
e (ZEZHE : 8) o

REZ-ZZAER-_ZTTHF
ANA=THILEE WEEEH
RAEEHRREMME 225 -

REEWED

RERADE
“EEREFRH
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES” REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

During the years ended 30 June 2006 and 2005, no
share options were granted to the directors in respect
of their services to the Group and further details of
which were set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

(b)  Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the year included three directors (2005: five directors),
details of whose emoluments have been disclosed in
note (a) above. The emoluments paid to the remaining
two non-directors, highest paid individuals for the year
are as follows:

14.

EFERLEREHEEZNE

(&)
@ EEN @

REE-ETAFR-_ZTHF
AAZTALFE  BREME
R S5 12 A B 2 FRAS 9 T 4
SR B - SHERNY
BRRH 29 -

b)) ZABREHFAL

FR - AEELEERSHFALTE
R=2E3 (CZ2RF 1%
B3 HEZMEFBEERL
X faE@ T » FRXMN T HEER
MEFES  KEFATZHME
W

Group

*5E
2006 2005
ZEERE “E2EHEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
F#ET TET

Salaries, allowances e REREYIG
and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions 3Rk &5+ S

The number of the remaining highest paid individuals

1,596 -
24 -

1,620 -

HBMEN FUT HE 2 RS

whose emoluments fell within the following band is AT ZAEMT :
as follows:
2006 2005
—EER —EERF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000/ 7T 2 -

During the years ended 30 June 2006 and 2005, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
or any of the five highest paid employees of the Group
as an inducement to join the Group or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y¥ - BERRE
Group x&EH
Machinery Furniture
Constructionin ~ Leasehold and and office Motor
progress improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HBER
EEIR BENEEE HERRE BOERE "E @it
HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FiEn FEx FEx FiEn FiEn FEn
(Restated)
(&5
At 1 July 2004 R=ZZERELA-H
Cost B 4 7,931 3,071 12,308 3,491 26,842
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE - (2,103) (2,052) (6,122) (1,755) (12,032)
Net book amount REFE 41 5,828 1,019 6,186 1,736 14,810
Year ended 30 June 2005 BE-ZZREAA=-TAHLEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 41 5,828 1,019 6,186 1,736 14,810
Additions HE 919 3,106 58 2,689 - 6,772
Disposal HE - - - (39) - (39)
Depreciation e - (2,058) (258) (1,925) (435) (4,676)
Net book amount REFE 960 6,876 819 6,911 1,301 16,867
At 30 June 2005 RZEZEERA=TH
Cost %N 960 11,037 3,129 14,834 3,491 33,451
Accumulated depreciation Rt E - (4,161) (2,310) (7,923) (2,190 (16,584)
Net book amount REFE 960 6,876 819 6,911 1,301 16,867
Year ended 30 June 2006 BE-ZZAERAZTHLEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 960 6,876 819 6,911 1,301 16,867
Additions HE 166 864 33 643 5 1,711
Disposal HE - - (28) (116) (291) (435)
Reclassified as assets held for sale  EF P EATHHEEE (1,126) - - - - (1,126)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEKE AR - - 3 583 - 586
Depreciation iK1 - (2,475) (334) (1,854) (695) (5,358)
Translation adjustment EHRE - 131 16 128 25 300
Net book amount BETE - 5,396 509 6,295 345 12,545
At30 June 2006 RZEEXRERA=TA
Cost B - 12,111 1,824 15,232 2,704 31,871
Accumulated depreciation 2t E - (6,715) (1,315) (8,937) (2,359 (19,326)
Net hook amount fREFE - 5,396 509 6,295 345 12,545
REEYERBRAE 71
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16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FAfTLHASHM
GROUP F5HE
2006 2005
—BERE —EThHF
HK$7000 HK$’000
FHETT FET
(Restated)
(&)
At beginning of the year F4)
Cost and net book value RAR BREFE 7,165 7,165
For the year ended BEFR
Opening net book value FHIREFE 7,165 7,165
Translation adjustment PE 5 = 135 -
Reclassified as assets held for sale ENDEATHEEESE (7,300) -
Net book value IREFE - 7,165
At end of the year FR
Cost and net book value RARREFE = 7,165
The Group’s prepaid land lease payments represent up-front AEEAENS L HEENREB LA
payments to acquire long term interest in the usage of land BLFHEEHE Lt REACEAE
situated in the PRC, which are held under medium term = Z AT FRIE ©
leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARS SR R B EE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BEEE
Group AEHE
Patents and Deferred
technical  development
know-how costs Total
HRER IEIE
i A Bl B R AN et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT FET
At 1 July 2004 R-ZZZTWMF
tHA—H
Cost 5% 1,359 6,317 7,676
Accumulated amortisation ESig £ (917) (1,556) (2,473)
Net book amount BREF{E 442 4,761 5,203
Year ended 30 June 2005 BE-ZZRF
ANA=ZTHLEEE
Opening net book amount ﬁ?ﬂ BREFE 442 4,761 5,203
Additions wNE 314 - 314
Amortisation 18 (153) (1,750) (1,903)
Net book amount BREF{E 603 3,011 3,614
At 30 June 2005 R-ZEZERF
~A _'|' H
Cost 2N 1,673 6,317 7,990
Accumulated amortisation Eae: £ (1,070) (3,306) (4,376)
Net book amount BREFE 603 3,011 3,614
Year ended 30 June 2006 BE2-_ZZ2REF
NAZTHLEEFE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 603 3,011 3,614
Amortisation s (174) (1,737) (1,911)
Translation adjustment R 13 57 70
Net book amount BREFE 442 1,331 1,773
At 30 June 2006 RIEERF
~A=+H
Cost DN 1,705 6,437 8,142
Accumulated amortisation Ea: £ (1,263) (5,106) (6,369)
Net book amount BREFE 442 1,331 1,773
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

T B A Szt

Company
EAT

2006 2005
—EBERE —EERF
HK$7000 HK$’000
F#&IT FET
Unlisted investments, at cost FELEHERE R 39,952 39,952
Less: Provision for impairment OB (6,261) -
33,691 39,952

Non-current portion of balances NAFERBEEZ

with subsidiaries included under MBARGEGRZ
non-current assets (Note) FEREN D (i EE) = 21,169
33,691 61,121

Note: Mi&E -

Due from subsidiaries AL NG S 23,018 24,350
Due to subsidiaries AN E NG S| (3,277) (3,181)
19,741 21,169

As at 30 June 2006, the balances with subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
Accordingly, the amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are
classified as current assets.

As at 30 June 2005, the balances with subsidiaries were
unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of repayment.
In the opinion of directors, no repayment would be demanded
within 12 months from the balance sheet date. Accordingly,
the amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries were classified as non-
current assets.
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18.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2006

are as follows:

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Particulars of
issued capital/

Cr R R E AU

18. MRMBATZ#ER @

RZBZBAREASNA=TH TEHELD

AZHENT :

Percentage of equity

Name operations registered capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
ERRL/
BIR BRTRE/ FEEER
£ ey aRRAFE RABS TEER
Direct Indirect
B CF:3
Vitop Bioenergy Limited British Virgin 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
Islands (“BVI")
REENIRERDA RBRLEE BREEIET REBR
(ZBELZHE)) Z1RBR B
Vitop Bioenergy (China) Ltd * PRC Registered capital of - 100% Manufacturing and trading
(“Vitop China”") HK$50,000,000 of BlOenergy® products,
and trading of multi-functional
water generators, healthcare
food products and other
healthcare products
REEY (RE) BRAR * PE ERBRA EERBERFR
(TRERE] 50,000,000/ 7T FIER - HES
TREBKHE - fR{E
REREGEEER
Vitop Healthcare Product Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each - 100% Trading of BIOenergy® products
RERBERERLT 3 BREEET HERERRIER
2R B
Star Ocean Limited (“SOL") BVI 1 share of US$1 each - 100% Investment holding
BFERRAE (NEFE)) KBELHS BREEIXET REER
Z1RBR B
ARREXFEERRMBEAREELT = PRC Registered capital of - 80% Manufacturing and trading
RMB5,840,000 of multi-functional
il aRRAE water generators
ARM5,840,0007 EERFES YRR
IBERENHRERAA PRC Registered capital - 100% Property investment
(“Shanghai Heng Fai")* (note 25) of US$1,000,000
(TEEER)* (f5E25) HE ERRE NERE
1,000,000% 7T
Vitop International Limited’ BVI 450,000 shares of - 100% Investment holding
US$1 each
EBEZHS BREEIXT REER
2450,0008 B 42
* Registered as wholly-foreign owned enterprise (“WOFE”) * RIEPBEEGIEMABIEEEDLZE
under the PRC law. (M EBELE] -
o Registered as Sino-foreign joint venture under the PRC law. o BREFEEHNEIMBRIIEE D
E3
# Acquired and became a wholly-owned subsidiary during the # REBEZE-_ZERFRA=+THLEF

year ended 30 June 2006

ERAWE  IRRAZENBATF
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18.

19.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The financial statements of the above subsidiaries are audited
by Grant Thornton for statutory purpose or Group
consolidation purpose.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which
have, in the opinion of the Company’s directors, principally
affected the results of the year or formed a substantial portion
of the assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Company’s

18. MMIBATZH#ELRE @)

LB AR M BHRIIAIESR
MTREZEENSIAEESHENSE
e

EREIIRDRZHBAT - ADRE
ERN WEWBRARAETEFERFE
ZERIARARECEEREEZE
BHM o ADBEERS 0 MRHEM
MEARFAENSERERIRE B

directors, results in particulars of excessive length. e
INTERESTS IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY  19. WH#EREHIHEREZ#Ex
Group
EE
2006 2005
—E¥xE = -TFaF
HK$7000 HK$000
FET FET
Share of net assets BhEEFEE - 570
Company
e A
2006 2005
“BERE —EERF
HK$7000 HK$000
FHETT FET
Unlisted investments, at cost FEETRE  BEAK 1,328 1,328
Less: Provision for impairment R ERE (1,328) -
- 1,328
Particulars of the jointly controlled entity as at 30 June 2006 RZBERFAA=TH  HEEZHE
8 BT

are as follows:

Principal Place of Percentage of
business establishment ownership
Name structure and operation Nature of business interest
TE D3 IEEAER
=L EZ T e EBMHE A=
Vitop OSG Corporate* PRC Manufacture and 40%**
Environmental trading of
Technology multi-functional
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd water generators
(“Vitop OSG”)
RE=ZFRABE NS ] EERHES DRERKE 40%**

&M BRLDF
(TRF=F])

* Registered as WOFE under the PRC law.

o As at 30 June 2006, the paid-up registered capital of Vitop
OSG contributed by the Group represented 24% (2005:
28.6%) of the aggregate paid-up registered capital of Vitop
OSG.
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19.

20.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i EEE e
INTERESTS IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY 19. WMEEEHHEZHELS @)
(continued)
The Group’s jointly controlled entity is not audited by Grant AEBEHEZHER 2 HBRRILEL
Thornton. HEFRIITEZ °
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRIITAEERAEZHER 2 EE
information of the Group’s interests in the jointly controlled ZIBERBE :
entity:
2006 2005
—EBTRE —EERF
HK$7000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets FREEE 420 7
Current assets REEE 165 1,560
585 1,567
Current liabilities REEE (585) (997)
Net assets EEFE = 570
Income PN 1,128 2,527
Expenses 3 (1,698) (3,285)
Loss after tax R EE (570) (758)
INVENTORIES 20. #E
Group
FEH
2006 2005
—ETRE —EERF
HK$7000 HK$’000
FET FET
Raw materials R AR 6,351 6,622
Work in progress E&m 3,994 2,846
Finished goods SRR MR 17,323 15,446
27,668 24,914
Less: Provision for obsolete and W RERBHEEER®E
slow-moving inventories (8,572) (1,253)
19,096 23,661

EER AT
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The credit terms that the Group offers to customers are
generally not more than 90 days. The ageing analysis of the

21. B SEWERR

REERTEFZEEH—RTERE0
A AKEzEZRBRERANGEERZ

Group’s trade receivables at the balance sheet date is as BEEM ST :
follows:
Group
3 3L
2006 2005
ZEBERE —EEREF
HK$7000 HK$000
FHETT FET
Outstanding balances with ages: RIBRE B D 2 REEEREE ¢
Within 30 days R30B A 1,661 3,462
From 31 to 60 days 31Z260H 1,163 230
From 61 to 180 days 61£180H 1,683 712
Over 180 days H180H 6,307 5,218
10,814 9,622
Less: Provision for impairment OB E RS (6,047) (3,793)
4,767 5,829

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

22, RAFELERFSEETIRZ
BEE

Group

xEEH
2006 2005
—EBERE —EERF
HK$’000 HK$000
F#ET FET

Structured notes with embedded BEREITEI BB

derivatives, at fair value RNEE > BAFE 2,480 -

The structured notes with embedded derivatives as at 30 June
2006 were classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. Fair value of the structured notes with
embedded derivatives as at 30 June 2006 has been determined
by reference to the quotation provided by the bank.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within the section on operating activities as part
of changes in working capital in the cash flow statement.

23. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

REBERFRAZTHBHEHITEIR
ZERBARE B0 BEARQFELGEF
HERIRZMBEE - R-ZT2ARF
ANAZ+THABEITETAZERARE
BzAVFEDSERTREZRERS
o

BAFELNENRBBRIIRZUHEE
DERSREBRANEEEB —H25 -
SIfEEBEES#E — 510 -

23. HEHARE

Group Company
50 43
2006 2005 2006 2005
—¥85E -$TnF | —EEAE  -3TIF
HK$7000 HK$000 HK$7000 HK$°000
FET TR FET TR
Listed equity investments in ERLETRARE

Hong Kong, at market value BmE - 1,495 - 1,048
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24.

25.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M ¥R

24. WERBITEE

Group Company
iKE AAT
2006 2005 2006 2005
—BFRE —“2ERF —BFRE “2ERF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FiEn FET FiEn
Cash at banks and in hand ReERBITER 9,350 25,947 11 53
Time deposits EREX 21,952 16,333 - -
Total cash and bank balances ~ BE&RRITEFHLE 31,302 42,280 11 53
Less: Pledged bank deposit fora ¥ : 1T EREE 2
bank loan facility EEMBTER (20) - = -
31,282 42,280 11 53
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily RTINS RBBES ARITERFIETE
bank deposit rates. Short-term bank deposits are made for ZFEFERAE - BHRITERIIRA

varying periods of between one day and 12 months depending
on the immediate cash requirement of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates, ranging
from 1.98% to 2.25% (2005: 1.98% to 2.25%) per annum.

As at the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
approximately HK$30,681,000 (2005: HK$41,872,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under the PRC Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 18 January 2006, SOL entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party for
the disposal of its 100% equity interest in Shanghai Heng Fai
for a cash consideration of RMB7.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$7.14 million) (the “Disposal”). Shanghai
Heng Fai is engaged in property investment in Shanghai, the
PRC. Details of the Disposal are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 9 February 2006. Up to the date of this
report, the statutory approval for the transfer of the 100%
equity interest has not been obtained and the transaction has
not been completed accordingly.

The directors of the Group expected a further cost to sell
amounting to HK$97,000 will be incurred and have re-
assessed the recoverable amounts of the relevant assets and
liabilities with reference to the sales proceeds, and
accordingly, an impairment loss amounted to HK$1,323,000
has been identified and recognised in the income statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006.

25.

SECHFREFRBFRE-AETZ
B8R ZFBMIFART WREEZE

HFEF ‘7%' | (FERZENF1.98%F2.25%
2B (CEERE  1.98%FE2.25%)) 5t
B o

REER  AEEUARE (AR

FHEZRERBITEFLES0,681,000
BT (ZTEERE  41,872,000/87T) ©

ARBTEERLBRBEMER - HiR
B EISNE B HIRDI R A E - EERAY
EEERE  AREEEERBEREE
ITHERBE ZRTEARE LIRS EAM
E% -

SHEATHEEZEE

RIEERE—A+N\RH FEHE—
BUSE=& L —EKRGEERS
DHEER EBEE Z100%KR A&
= REARES ARY7,500,0007T (8
HER7,140,000/87T) ([HESIE]) ©
PEEERTE LEREYERE - H
EETEHBHNEARARAR-ZEEAREF
“ANBTIRZERA - BEARREA
B RARNAREBEZEZI00%K A
R ZEEHE  BERBERFEERT
5}@ °

AEBZEETEHAEE P ELE97,000
BRAZHERS  WESBHEWRRE
I EEEEEREBEZ TIRESEE
EHit » B801,323,0008 T 2 REEE
EREBE_EENERNA=TRHIEEE
Zq&ﬁi%q:ﬁﬂi&ﬁwu ©

EYER AT
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25. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued) 25. D EBT{EEZEE @)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Shanghai Heng RIBEERFAA=+RH > LEEES
Fai at 30 June 2006 which are classified as assets held for ER M ECEECEEREBZETE
sale are as follows: T
HK$’000
FET
Property, plant and equipment M- BMERRE 1,126
Prepaid land lease payments FEN LA EMANR 7,300
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables — &] & - FE {3 7018 & H fth & U BR X 62
Total assets classified as held for sale FIMETHEE 2 REE 8,488
Less: Impairment loss recognised on W EHGEHEEECER
the remeasurement of assets ZBEEE
of disposal group (1,323)
Assets classified as held for sale FMERIHEEECEE 7,165
Accrued liabilities and other payables FIMERHEECBEEMS 2
associated with assets classified EitEEREMEMERR
as held for sale (122)
Net assets of disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBNEARZEEFE 7,043
26. TRADE PAYABLES 26. HEHEMTRR
The credit terms of trade payables varies according to the B RNRMZEENEEREHER
terms agreed with different suppliers. The ageing analysis of MEZKBME - AEE 2B FENIK
the Group’s trade payables as at the balance sheet date is as MREEB 2REROTWT ¢
follows:
Group
ARE
2006 2005
—BERE —ZEFHF
HK$7000 HK$’000
FHETT FET
Outstanding balances with ages: RIBERE B0 < REEEREE ©
Within 30 days MR30B A 3,608 9,563
From 31 to 60 days 31260H 1,880 3,231
From 61 to 180 days 612180H 1,392 3,045
Over 180 days H180H 2,068 791
8,948 16,630
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR R MicE
INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 27. ERRITER
Original
currency 2006 2005
R#& —BERE —ZERF
HK$’000 HK$000
FETT FETT
Bank loans, secured IRITER > BRI HK$ % 7T 3,889 500
Analysed into: DM
Bank loans repayable ARUTHEEE ZRITER
— within one year - —FR 2,276 500
—in the second year BF 847 -
— in the third to fifth years, F=ZFEERF
inclusive (BEEEME) 766 —~
3,889 500
Less: Amounts due within one year & : st ARBBEET 2
included in current liabilities —FREH 2B (2,276) (500)
Amounts due after one year SAAERBEBETZ
included in non-current liabilities — R ZFIE 1,613 -

The Group’s bank loan facility amounting to HK$5,000,000
(2005: HK$5,000,000), of which HK$3,889,000 (2005:
HK$500,000) has been utilised as at the balance sheet date.
The facility is secured by the Group’s financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss amounting to HK$2,480,000 (note
22) and a pledged bank deposit of HK$20,000 (note 24)
(2005: a pledged deposit of the Group amounting to
HK$2,500,000) and supported by a corporate guarantee

executed by the Company (note 34).

All bank loans of the Group are floating interest rate bank
loans. The interest rates of the Group’s bank loans ranged
from 4.3% to 8.3% (2005: 4.3%) per annum.

REERIRITEREEE SXEA5,000,000
BT (ZEZEREF ¢ 5,000,000/87T) 0 A
#HH - EF3,889,0008T (ZEEH
: 500,000 T) ERENA o FZEEETIM
REBIR D P ELUGRIEE IR 2 B
FEE2,480,00078 7T (MiFE22) K B 3K 17
R1T1EF20,000/8 7T (M5k24) (ZEF
£¢ AEE S K IFFEA2,500,00078

JO) YEIRIF - WA Q TR A TER
SE% (FfE34) °

AEBFRERITERI LT R =
B o REERTERZENERL4.3%
:1:8.30/0 (—7 7£$ . 4.30/0) ;F‘:g °

%EEMM
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R B E

A summary of movements in the authorised and issued share

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. =X
2006 2005
ZEBERE —ETRE
HK$7000 HK$000
F#ETT FET
Authorised: ETE
20,000,000,000 ordinary shares 20,000,000,0008% & i%
of HK$0.025 each H{E0.0258B T 2 & B 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: EBITRHR
698,543,104 (2005: 681,923,748) 698,543,104 8%
ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each (ZBERF:
681,923,7481)
FREE0.0258 T
ZE B 17,464 17,048

RABEERERITRAZEBMEN

capital of the Company is as follows: T
Number of Number of Nominal
authorised shares value of
shares issued shares issued
EE BRI [5%:{h)
ROEE RH#E ROEE
HK$°000
FET

At 1 July 2004 R-ZZZEMELA—H 20,000,000,000 678,198,400 16,955

Share options exercised (note a) TR (fizEa) - 60,000 2

New shares issued (note b) BATH R (M 3ED) - 3,665,348 91

At 30 June 2005 and 1 July 2005 R-ZZZEREAA=TH

R=ZEERFtA-H  20,000,000,000 681,923,748 17,048

Shares issued as scrip DRR BT 2R G

dividends (note ¢) (Pt aEc) - 16,619,356 416

At 30 June 2006 RZFFAERAZTE  20,000,000,000 698,543,104 17,464

Notes: MIEE -

(a) During the year ended 30 June 2005, the subscription rights (a) 60,0000 B IR REPI B < R BB REC 1R
attaching to 60,000 share options were exercised at the RBESRIZBEINREBE=ZZ
subscription price of HK$0.30 per share, resulting in the issue AFFEANB=Z1THLEFERTHE &
of 60,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each in the capital HEBITARARRAPERMEE0.025
of the Company for a total cash consideration, before BT 2 EER 60,0000  BEENK
expenses, of approximately HK$18,000. 8 CRETBASZ) 89%318,0008 7T ©

(b) During the year ended 30 June 2005, Mr. Lee Kwok Ming, a (b) BHE-_SZRFEAB=1tHLE

former director of the Company, subscribed for 3,665,348
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.025 each at
HK$0.31 per share for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of approximately HK$1,136,000.

During the year ended 30 June 2006, a total of 16,619,356
shares were issued under the scrip dividend scheme of the
Company for the payment of 2005 final dividend.
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29.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

In connection with the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Company
conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 January 2003. The Scheme became
effective on 10 February 2003 upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
by way of introduction and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the Scheme remains in force for ten years from
that date.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards
to participants for their contribution to the Group or any entity
in which the Group has an equity interest (the “Invested
Entity”) and/or to enable the Group or an Invested Entity to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group or an Invested Entity.

The participants of the Scheme include: (a) any employee
(whether full time or part time employee, including any
executive director but not any non-executive director) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (b)
any non-executive director (including any independent non-
executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity; (c) any supplier of goods or services to
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (d) any
customer of the Group or any Invested Entity; (e) any person
or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group or any Invested Entity;
and (f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by independent
non-executive directors of the Company. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or any
of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the
date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in any twelve-
month period up to the date of grant, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

29.

Cr R R E AU
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29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The total number of shares of the Company in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme must not exceed
68,013,640 shares, being 10% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue on the date when the 10% Scheme
limit has been refreshed. The 10% Scheme limit was refreshed
at the last annual general meeting of the Company held on
18 October 2004. The total number of shares in respect of
which options are issuable under the Scheme was
59,246,464, representing approximately 8.48% of the issued
share capital of the Company at 30 June 2006.

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to each participant (including exercised and outstanding
options) in any twelve-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of grant (the “Individual
Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess of the Individual
Limit must be subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meeting with such participant and his or her associates
abstaining from voting.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period as
the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) may
determine which shall not be more than ten years from the
date of grant of the option.

Save as determined by the Board, there is no minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

The acceptance of an offer of the grant of an option must be
made within 28 days from the date upon which such offer is
made with a non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the
grantee to the Company by way of consideration for the grant
thereof.

The subscription price of a share of the Company in respect
of any option shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be
lower than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the option, which must be a trading day;
(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option;
and (c) the nominal value of the share.
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29.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Subject to earlier termination of the Company by resolution
in general meeting, the Scheme shall be valid and effective
till 9 February 2013. After the expiry of such valid period,
no further options will be offered but in all other respects the
provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Particulars of the share options granted and remained
outstanding under the Scheme during the year were as
follows:

29.

Cr R R E AU

RERR T 8 ()

AEK-—EBR EE-E-Z=%ZA8
NERLE  ERARATATERRAE LR
2RBREFRUTE - TR ZBHRD
EmE - SAERIRHEMBRE -
MBI RN RS ES —EA
BTR¥H -

BRELEETHAARBRRE SRR
RAEERFEZER -

FA - REBTEERERERITEZE
REFHROT

Number of share options
Name or category At Granted during Lapsed during  Exercised during At Date of Exercise Exercise
of participant 1 July 2005 the year  Reclassification the year the year 30 June 2006 grant* period price**
RZEZHE . RZZERE .
SRERZUER tA-8 FRERL EfSR ERBAN EREAK RAZTH RHAE k8 fiE"
HK§
En
Directors:
Hung Kai So 1,600,000 - - (1,600,000) - - 30 April 2003 30 April 2003 to 025
) 30 A%M 2006
RES ZTRZF —;=_
BAZTH tAE
ZRERE
ME=1H
Kam loi 1,600,000 - - (1,600,000) - - 30 April 2003 30 April 2003 to 025
’ 30 A%M 2006
25 “REcE —F5=
BAZTE  BAZ1H 5
“EINE
WA=t
Ma Yufeng 2,500,000 - - (2,500,000 - - 30 April 2003 30 April 2003 to 025
30 A%M 2006
LF 3 ZE3zE —2%=
BAZtE  BAZ1H 5
“EINE
MA=1H
4,151,700 - - - - 4,151,700 4Nov2003 4 Nov2003 to 030
4Nov 2006
“REcE REcE
t-ARE  t-ARAZE
“EINE
t-ABA
Liu Jun 2,500,000 - - (2,500,000 - - 30 April 2003 30 April 2003 to 025
30 A%M 2006
8% “REcE —F5=
BAZtE  BAZ1H §
“EINE
mA=tA
4,151,700 - - - - 4,151,700 4Nov2003 4 Nov2003 to 030
4Nov 2006
-EEzF cgEcf
t-ARE  t-ARAE
“EINE
t-ABA
Lee Kwok Ming 20,000,000 - 5,000,000) (15,000,000) - - 5 Jan 2004 5 Jan 2004 to 0.495
(resigned as a director of 4Jan 2009
the Company on 5 January 2006)
25l 22pF It
(R=ZEnF -ALA —-RiRE
-RRARE ZRENE
ARAES) Lk
36,503,400 - (5,000,000) 23,200,000) - 8,303,400

X £ R A RAR
CETFEH
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. RARRHESHEl @)
Number of share options
Name or category At Granted during Lapsed during ~ Exercised during At Date of Exercise Exercise
of participant 1 July 2005 the year  Reclassification the year the year 30 June 2006 grant* period price**
R-E2IF RZZEAE
SRERRARA tA-B FRERR ENfSR EREAN ERBAE ABZTH R A% s g
HK§
En
Other employees:
Ao
In aggregate 3,250,000 - - (3,250,000) - - 30 April 2003 30 April 2003 to 025
30 April 2006
&t -%32
BA=1HE
ZEER
MmA=TH
In aggregate 7,791,700 - (70,000) (1,300,000) - 6,421,700 4Nov2003 4 Nov2003 to 030
4 Nov 2006
it -g3ck -22z%
t-AER  t-AERZ
CEEIAE
t-AEH
In aggregate 2,700,000 - - (600,000) - 2,100,000 1Jun2004 1 June 2004 to 0425
31 May 2007
it -REImE CRRmE
~A-H ~R-BE
ZB2tE
EA=t-A
In aggregate 19,001,364 - (100,000) (800,000) - 18,101,364 140ct 2004 14 Oct 2004 to 0371
13 Oct 2007
@it “REQE RINE
TATER  TATEAZ
ZRRLE
tAt=A
In aggregate - - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 5 Jan 2004 5 Jan 2004 to 0.495
41Jan 2009
&3t 2pE It S
-RaA —-RiHE
“EEINE
Ltk
32,743,064 - 4,830,000 (5,950,000) - 31,623,064
Suppliers:
HEs:
In aggregate 1,500,000 - - (1,500,000) - - 30 April 2003 30 April 2003 to 025
30 April 2006
&3t %%=f i
BmEZtBE  BAZtTHE
CEEAE
MA=TH
In aggregate 9,000,000 - - - - 9,000,000 140ct 2004 14 Oct 2004 to 0371
13 Oct 2007
&t “EIpE “BERE
TATER  tATEAEZ
ZB%tE
tAt=A
In aggregate 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000 28 0ct2004 28 Oct 2004 to 0.355
27 Oct 2009
@it “REQE RINE
TAZTNE TAZTNRE
ERAE
tA=ttA
16,500,000 - - (1,500,000) - 15,000,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. FERR#ESTEl @
Number of share options
ERERA
Name or category At Granted during Lapsed during  Exercised during At Date of Exercise Exercise
of participant 1 July 2005 the year  Reclassification the year theyear 30 June 2006 grant* period price**
R-B%RF RZZERE
SRERLRER tA-H FRERL EfRR FREAN FRETR ARZTA RinAEH &8 il
HKS
En
Customers:
ZF:
In aggregate 2,805,000 - - 2,805,000) - - 30 April 2003 30 April 2003 to 025
30 April 2006
@i “REzE It 3
BA=tE  BA=THE
CBEAE
BA=tH
In aggregate - - 70,000 - - 70,000 4Nov2003 4 Nov2003 to 030
4 Nov 2006
it cERzf CEEZR
t-ABR  t-AQAE
It S A
t-AEA
In aggregate 4,150,000 - 100,000 - - 4250000 140ct2004 14 Oct 2004 to 0371
13 0ct 2007
&t it 153 it k3
tAtBE  tATRBE
CBRtE
tATZA
6,955,000 - 170,000 (2,805,000) - 4,320,000
9,701,464 - - (33,455,000 - 5946464
* The vesting period of the share options is from the date of * BRECFEIAREABEES
the grant until the commencement of the exercise period. TEERBAL -
o The exercise price of the share options is subject to ok EHRRFBATARRA D A RAH

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The share options granted on 30 April 2003 shall be
exercisable up to 30%, 60% and 100% on or before 30 April
2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively, for all grantees under
the Scheme.

The share options granted on 4 November 2003 shall be
exercisable up to 30%, 60% and 100% on or before 4
November 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively, for grantees
other than the directors of the Company.

REMBLUEHBERT  BRE
ZOIRERSHE -

FER-ZZE=FNA=1HRETE
Eh%ﬁ%ﬂ"ffézgﬁ)\ RZZZMN
FNZIBERFERIEZIRFENA=T
B ZAl > &Z A2 HI1T#E30% * 60%
R 100%58 IR & -

R-BEE=F+ - N AERTERE
ZEBEAN GREQATDESLUN  R==
EZNFE - —EERFERZEAF+—
BIUASZA > HZA 2 31T630%
60% K 100%85 IR #E o
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29.

30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The share options for subscribing for 5,000,000 shares granted
on 5 January 2004 shall be exercisable for a period of five
years commencing on 5 January 2004 pursuant to a letter
agreement dated 4 January 2006 and entered into between
the Company and Mr. Lee Kwok Ming in respect of his re-
designation as consultant of the Company following his
resignation as a director of the Company on 5 January 2006.

The share options granted on 1 June 2004 shall be exercisable
up to 30%, 60% and 100% on or before 31 May 2005, 2006
and 2007, respectively, by the grantees.

The share options granted on 14 October 2004 shall be
exercisable up to 30%, 60% and 100% on or before 13
October 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively, by the grantees.

The share options granted on 28 October 2004 shall be
exercisable as to 2,000,000 share options on execution of
the marketing service agreement dated 28 October 2004 and
entered into between the Company and the grantee, and as
to 4,000,000 share options on completion of the marketing
services provided by the grantee.

RESERVES
Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 39 of
the financial statements.

The share premium account of the Group mainly includes:
(i) shares issued at a premium; and (ii) the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the reorganisation scheme (the “Group
Reorganisation”) in preparation for the public listing of the
Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange over
the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange therefor.

The Group’s capital reserve represented the amount of
retained earnings of Vitop China applied for the increase in
its registered and paid-up capital.
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RESERVES (continued) 30. f#fE @
Group (continued) xEH (@&
In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable REERERNIIEBEELEZPER
to WOFEs, Vitop China and Shanghai Heng Fai, being the Bl KRB ZEWBLRRARFFER L
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, are required to BEBAEERERT RN @E) 10%
transfer 10% of their profit after tax, if any, to the statutory EREMHE EEESEREERESR
reserve until the balance of the fund reach 50% of their B2aMERZ50% - RIBEBETER
respective registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions BIFR & 2 & FPR&I - SETE 4 A BAFIK
as set out in the relevant PRC regulations, the statutory reserve HKERBZRAEHRE -
may be used to offset against their respective accumulated
losses.
Company AAT
Retained
Capital profits/
Share redemption  (Accumulated
premium reserve losses) Total
gx RN/
BB EE BEofE  (RHER) @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET T T FiEn
At 1 July 2004 R-ZZBZENFtA—H 53,296 29 1,232 54,557
Issue of new shares BITHRG 1,045 - - 1,045
Share options exercised TRERE 16 - - 16
2004 final dividend for new “ZENFE
shares subscribed HREROREBRE - - (19 (19
Net loss for the year - Total AEEBHBERE -
recognised income and KEECEABA
expense for the year MY B - - (5,819) (5,819)
Proposed final 2005 dividend BR—ZTHEE
KRS (4,910) - - (4,910)
At30 June 2005 and 1July 2005 ~ R=ZZHEFRA=1H 49,447 29 (4,606) 44,870
“EERFtA-H
New shares issued as scrip dividend B B 24T 2 H K43 2,635 - - 2,635
Net loss for the year - Total TEEFRRE -
recognised income and FEECHRIANAR
expense for the year FAx#H - - (11,930) (11,930)
At 30 June 2006 RZEERENAZTH 52,082 29 (16,536) 35,575
REEWED

RERADE
“EEREFRH
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30.

31.

RESERVES (continued)
Company (continued)

The share premium account of the Company mainly includes:
(i) shares issued at a premium; and (ii) the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries
and the value of the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group Reorganisation. Under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a) On 1 February 2006, Vitop International Limited
(“VIL”) became the wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company following the acquisition of the remaining
89% equity interest in VIL by the Group at that date.
VIL is an investment holding company which held
100% equity interest in Zhuhai Vitop Daily Articles
Co., Ltd., which is principally engaged in trading of
cosmetic and other healthcare products in the PRC.
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31.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 31.

(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued) (a)

The consolidated assets and liabilities of VIL arising
from the acquisition are as follows:

Cr R R E AU

¥BaH @

&)

AZWEMEEZVILGREEE
REBEWT :

Carrying
Fair value amounts
AFEHE BRE(E
HK$7000 HK$’000
FETT F#&T
Property, plant and equipment ~ #1% - BE KRR HE 586 586
Cash and bank balances REeERBITEE 191 191
Inventories =78 1,441 1,441
Deposits, prepayments and e BERER
other receivables H it E W ER X 449 449
Trade payables B S ENRM
Accrued liabilities and EstaE R EMmELIRR (647) (647)
other payables (2,020) (2,020)
Net assets acquired BAZEEFE -
Satisfied by: XNFRE
Cash consideration HeRE 3,124
Waiver of amount due from a HRREWVILZ— B A
former equity holder of VIL EREEAZRE (3,124)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash

FRZWERERATEEY

equivalents in respect of the acquisition is as follows: MAFEIFTUT -
HK$7000
F#ET
Cash consideration, net HENRE  FHE -
Bank and cash balances acquired BAZRITRASHEF 191
Net inflow A FEE 191

Since its acquisition, VIL contributed revenue of
HK$nil and net loss of HK$1,149,000 to the Group.

Had the combination taken place at 1 July 2005, the
revenue and the net loss of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2006 would have been HK$99,988,000
and HK$39,920,000 respectively. These pro forma
information are for illustrative purposes only and are
not necessarily an indication of revenue and result of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
July 2005, nor are they intended to be a projection of
future results.

HEUWEELR  VILBRERS
RWmEETREEFRH
1,149,000/ JT °

MR -_EBZERFELA—HETE
Bt AIREBEZE-_ZEE A EA
B=1+HIEFEZWEREEF
ZEFE D BIA99,988,000/8 T K
39,920,000 7T - ZEHEZEER
BEFRA A RS ARER R

WEER—EEHEF LA — E|J1:
B ARE 2 EEXBEEEE
2B KR /JT\T%%H’E?%
RREEZTER -

%EEMM

"L /'\E
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32.

33.

34.

ACQUISITION OF THE REMAINING 30% 32. WEE—MEMBASIRTZ30%M
EQUITY INTEREST OF A SUBSIDIARY AL
Pursuant to an agreement dated 4 January 2006, the Group RE—HR-_ZERF—ANBRILZ
acquired the remaining 30% equity interest in Bf;& K & 4t & AEEBUREREARY
REYMBEBERLDT (“Vitop Dokey”) (the “30% 300,0007T(#I1HZ74286,000/ T) »
Acquisition”), a subsidiary of the Company, from a former RATME A RHERFHREDR
equity holder of Vitop Dokey, for a cash consideration of BRAR (REMR]) 2 —BRIERE
RMB300,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$286,000). The BABBRRERTBRT Z30%RAHE
30% Acquisition was subsequently completed on 18 January wm([WEB30%RAEREE]) - B
2006. The cash consideration represented the amount of the 30%RAERBEEENR ST F—
acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s AtNBREH - REREREWB S EL
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. EWBARZAEBAIEE AERTIA
BECRAFPFREZRE KA -
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 33. MEWERIE
The Group leases certain of its offices, factory and machinery REBRBEFAIHELCEHERHES
and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease HETEFTE IRRBBERERE  F
arrangements with lease terms ranging from one to five years. HBNF—ZERF -
As at 30 June 2006, the total future minimum lease payments REZZBZERFAA=ZTH  TARERK
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as EHNZENRRGEHSHEBENT ¢
follows:
Group
ARE
2006 2005
—BERE —EERF
HK$7000 HK$’000
FHETT FET
Within one year —FR 1,829 3,430
In the second to fifth years EEELF 1,719 5,525
3,548 8,955
The Company did not have any significant operating lease RABAEE AL EEAEREERY
arrangements as at the balance sheet date (2005: Nil). ZH(CZEBHF  H&) o
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34. HAARK

The Group’s bank loan facility amounting to HK$5,000,000
(2005: HK$5,000,000) is supported by a corporate guarantee
executed by the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Group nor the Company
had any significant contingent liabilities at the balance sheet
date.
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36.

37.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EFKIE
As at 30 June 2006, the Group and the Company had REZZBZEXRFAA=TH > ARERAE
outstanding capital commitments in respect of the capital RAFEEROAEEHEZEHERXEF
injection to Vitop OSG, a jointly controlled entity of the SEXTEZCKRBER 7¥K )
Group, of approximately HK$2,857,000 (2005: 2,857,000 T (ZEZ R F :
HK$2,943,000) which have been contracted but not provided 2,943,000/ ) ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%aﬁ« HESE
for in the financial statements. BARAMBERFEBE -
OTHER COMMITMENTS 36. HithikiE
Group
AEE
2006 2005
—ETRE —EThHF
HK$7000 HK$’000
FHETT FET
Commitments in respect of: BRATHIEE 2&E
— property, plant and equipment - BRAINERBEZYE
contracted, but not provided for MERKRE 1,751 2,336
— others — Hft 952 1,300
2,703 3,636
The Company did not have any significant other commitments AARREE B I B E M E KEIE
as at the balance sheet date (2005: Nil). (ZZEZHE 8 -
NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 37. G&HE&RERM
STATEMENT
Major non-cash transactions FEHFREXS
Save as those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, BRI ISRERIIBEEIN  NEBEE
the Group had the following major non-cash transaction: UTEEHFRERS
(a)  During the year ended 30 June 2006, a total of @ BE-ZZAFAA=THLEF

16,619,356 shares were issued under the scrip
dividend scheme of the Company for the payment of
2005 final dividend.

E - READT 2R ETE

BT 16,619,356FJ“H"1§}LA/JE
NZZEZRERERE -

%EEMM
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38.

related parties:

(a)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. FAEANLXS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, BRI RERMIRESEN  REBEE
the Group had the following material transactions with certain TREALTETTIERRS :
(a)
Group
AERE
2006 2005
—BEARE —EERF
Notes HK$7000 HK$°000
Mt £ FETT FET
Rental expenses to FTFUTALZ
HeEMx%
— a minority equity holder of a — AR A M
subsidiary of the Company REZDH
B@mFAA ) 480 471
— a related company - BEELF (i) 150 -
Purchase of goods from the joint BZA&EEH[E
venture partner of the jointly ZEHERZEE
controlled entity of the Group EBMERE
&m (i) 14,714 17,720
Purchases from a jointly EEqEiEE
controlled entity BEXE (i) 2,691 5,114
Notes: Bt
(i) The Group’s transactions with a minority equity (i) AEBEAQNFMBEARZ
holder of a subsidiary of the Company, the Group’s LEREREA - AEEH
jointly controlled entity and the joint venture partner EEHERRAEELEE
of the Group’s jointly controlled entity were made FIBRCEELEBHEZR
in accordance with the mutually agreed terms. SRR EFHE 2 RFE
7
(ii) The rental expenses were incurred to China Excel (ii) FEEZHEMINEINSF
Professional Advisors Limited, in which Mr. Chan EHRERZHERAT -
Yuk Tong, an executive director of the Company, is NAPTESREREES
director and equity holder. The lease period is from HESKEDREAA - 2
1 January 2006 to 17 May 2007 and the monthly B-Z2ERE-HF—-BEZ
rent is HK$25,000. ZRLFRATER 8A
HE 52500087 °
(b)  Compensation of key management personnel of the b)) AEEXTEEBABSZHH :
Group:
2006 2005
—BERE —EERF
HK$7000 HK$000
FHETT FET
Total remuneration of directors FRNESRHEMER
and other members of key EBABZHMERE
management during the year
— Short term employee benefits - EHEEREF 5,919 8,193
- Pension scheme contributions — RIS EMHR 123 125
6,042 8,318
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40.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group does not have written risk management policies

and guidelines.

However, the board of directors meets

periodically to analyse and formulate measures to manage
the Group’s exposure to market risk, including principally
changes in interest rates and currency exchange rates.
Generally, the Group employs a conservative strategy
regarding its risk management.

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk

Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of
financial assets is the carrying amount of the financial
assets as shown on the face of the balance sheet or in
the notes to the financial statements. Credit risk,
therefore, is only disclosed in circumstances where
the maximum potential loss differs significantly from
the financial asset’s carrying amount.

The Group’s bank deposits are mainly deposited with
banks in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group has little concentration of credit risk due
to its relatively large customer base. The Group
performs ongoing credit evaluation of its customers’
financial positions. Provision for impairment is based
upon a review of the expected collectibility of all
receivables.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from the exposure of RMB against Hong Kong
dollar. The Group does not hedge its foreign currency
risks, as the management of the Group does not expect
any significant movements in the exchange rate
between RMB and Hong Kong Dollar.

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposure to interest rate risk arising
from its bank loans and structured notes with
embedded derivatives. The impact of interest rate
fluctuations is insignificant during the year. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors the related
interest rate exposure closely and will consider to use
hedging policy if the need arise.

Fair values

The fair values of the Group’s current financial assets
and liabilities are not materially different from their
carrying amount because of the immediate or short
term maturity. The fair values of non-current liabilities
were not disclosed because the carrying values were
not materially different from their fair values.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements on pages 33 to 95 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20
October 2006.
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